ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE SPECI AL COW TTEE ON ENERGY
February 19, 2015
1:16 p. m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senator dick Bishop, Co-Chair
Senator Peter M cciche, Co-Chair
Senator Bert Stednman

Senat or Denni s Egan

VEVBERS ABSENT
Senat or Lyman Hof f man
COW TTEE CALENDAR

PRESENTATI ON: "COLLABORATIVE  APPROACH TO UNIFIED  SYSTEM
OPERATI ON FOR THE RAI LBELT REG ON' BY XCEL ENERGY

PRESENTATI ON: " NATURAL GAS DI STRI BUTI ON BUI LD- QUT" BY ENSTAR
PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON

No previous action to record

W TNESS REGQ STER

TERESA MOCGENSEN, Vi ce President

Transm ssi on

Xcel Energy

M nneapolis, M nnesota

POSI TION STATEMENT: Provided an overview of Xcel Energy's
el ectric transm ssion system

DANI EL KLI NE, Director

Strategic Transmi ssion Initiatives

Xcel Energy

M nneapolis, M nnesota

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Provided an overview of Xcel Energy's
el ectric transm ssion system

CHERYL BREDENBECK, Director
Transm ssi on | nvest nent Devel opnent

SENATE NRG COWM TTEE -1- February 19, 2015



Xcel Energy

M nneapol i s, M nnesota

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Provided an overview of Xcel Energy's
el ectric transni ssion system

JARED GREEN, President

ENSTAR Natural Gas Conpany

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided a natural gas distribution overview
of ENSTAR s operations in Al aska and Heritage Gas' operations in
Nova Scoti a.

JOHN SI MS, Vice President

Cor por at e Resources and Busi ness Devel opnent

ENSTAR Nat ural Gas Conpany

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided an overview of ENSTAR s natural gas
operations for the Anchorage and Cook Inlet area.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

1:16: 27 PM

CO- CHAIR PETER M CCICHE called the Senate Special Commttee on
Energy neeting to order at 1:16 p.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Egan, Co-Chair Bishop, and Co-Chair
M cci che.

PRESENTATI ON: " COLLABORATI VE APPROACH TO UNI FI ED SYSTEM
OPERATI ON FOR THE RAI LBELT REG ON' BY XCEL ENERGY.

1:17:42 PM
CO-CHAIR M CCI CHE wel coned Xcel Energy (XE) to the conmttee
nmeeti ng.

1:18: 04 PM
TERESA MOGENSEN, Vice President, Transm ssion, Xcel Energy,
M nneapol i s, M nnesot a.

1:18: 16 PM
DANI EL KLINE, Director, Strategic Transmi ssion Initiatives, Xcel
Energy, M nneapolis, M nnesot a.

1:18:19 PM
CHERYL BREDENBECK, Director, Transm ssi on | nvest ment
Devel opnent, Xcel Energy, M nneapolis, M nnesota.

M5. MOGENSEN read an overvi ew statenent as foll ows:

SENATE NRG COWM TTEE - 2- February 19, 2015



We understand that Alaska is on a journey to transform
and better i ntegrate its el ectrical ener gy
infrastructure, to be able to extract the full value
out of your past investnments and pave the way for
future growth. We believe we have sone perspective and
experience in resource that could be helpful to you

and our presentation today wll cover a little bit
about Xcel Energy, our wunderstanding of the Al aska
Rai | bel t si tuation, our experience in | eadi ng
col | aborative transm ssion devel opnent, and sone

t hought s on possi bl e next steps.

She explained that XE is a major integrated utility in the Lower
48 and detailed the conpany's operations as foll ows:

e Four operating conpanies that operate in eight retai
st at es.

e Transmission in 10 states.
e Ceneration, transm ssion, distribution, and gas services.

* Nunmber one wind energy provider with a strong renewable
ener gy conponent.

e Top five in energy efficiency prograns and enission
reducti ons.

1: 21: 22 PM

She proclainmed that XE is a leader in transm ssion and detail ed
as foll ows:

o Territory conpri ses about 19, 000 [ine-mles, 1, 200
substati ons, and assets in 10 states.

* (Operate wunder two Regional Transm ssion Organi zations
(RTO: Md-Continent I|ndependent System Operator (M SO and
Sout hwest Power Pool ( SPP)

e Colorado utility does not operate under a RTO

e (Operate under three North American Electric Reliability
Corporation (NERC) regions. NERC is the organization that
governs reliability standards performance.

COCHAIR MCCICHE noted that the presentation’s title addresses
unified system operations. He referenced a slide in XEs
presentation and asked what the difference is between Unified
System Qperations (USO and | ndependent System Operations (I SO).

M5. MOGENSEN replied that the concept is essentially the sane.
She summarized that regardless of who owns the generators or

SENATE NRG COWM TTEE - 3- February 19, 2015



transm ssion, the USO or |1SO operator governs the overal
oper ati on.

1:23: 40 PM
SENATOR STEDMVAN j oi ned the committee neeting.

CO-CHAIR M CCICHE surm sed that a USO has a tendency to make the
| argest conpany the strongest and 1SO has the ability to put
nmore controls in place so that smaller conpanies are not
di sadvant aged.

M5. MOGENSEN specified that the 1SOs board nenbers are all
i ndependent of the organizations.

She said XE has a significant capability in transm ssion,
construction, operations, and planning. She asserted that XE has

| arge capabilities that include in-house as well as outside
materials and services partners. She revealed that XE is
currently executing a $4.5 billion investnent program She

summari zed that XE has the economes of scale and capabilities
to bring into play and assi st Al aska.

1:25:36 PM

She noted that XE comes from a place of conmmon values and
experiences that Alaska is currently focusing and working on.
She asserted that XE has the experience to assist Al aska as
foll ows:

e Started up SO and USO organi zations to speed
i npl enent ati on.

» Executed large build-outs simlar to the Railbelt by
getting participating utilities to collaborate while
mai nt ai ni ng aut onony.

* Possesses the ability to integrate renewabl es.

» Focuses on conservation and conmunity.

M5. MOGENSEN summarized that XE hopes to align with Alaska's
direction and provide sonme of the benefit from XE s experience.

1:27: 20 PM

COCHAIR MCCCHE remarked that Alaska is beginning to
i nvestigate whether or not all of the Railbelt entities can work
t oget her coll aboratively. He noted that this year he had pulled
back a bill because he believed work is being done. He said he
is encouraging people to get to the table to address generation
and transmission infrastructure in order to operate as
efficiently as possible. He asserted that starting the

SENATE NRG COWM TTEE -4- February 19, 2015



di scussi on depends on everybody coming to the table somewhat
equally and having their own interests protected. He stated that
resistance wll occur if the little-guy is not included in the
di scussi on.

CO- CHAI R Bl SHOP asked if XE has done sone | SO nodel s.

M5. MOGENSEN answered yes, but noted that XE does not run the
| SO

CO CHAI R BI SHOP asked what the delivery electricity prices were
before and after the | SO was set up.

M5. MOGENSEN answered that she does not have the figures.

CO CHAIR BISHOP stated that the committee would like to see the
data and noted the inportance in value for custoners and
electrical utilities.

1:30: 08 PM

MR. KLINE remarked that Alaska’s Railbelt wutility system is
essentially the result of individual planning. He explained that
utilities have the obligation to ensure that custoner needs and
demands are nmet. He asserted that individually planning is not
an indictnment of nmethods or the utilities, but a recognition of
what the wutilities needed to do in the absence of a nore
coor di nat ed approach.

COCHAIR BISHOP pointed out that |little independent power
producers were needed 50 years ago. He remarked that today is a
new day.

MR. KLINE said XE is aware that customers have cost concerns. He
noted that sone Alaska custoners are paying a nonthly utility
bill that is higher than their nortgage paynent. He pointed out
that the Governor has also cited concerns with the cost of
energy for all Alaskans, citing the Railbelt as well as rural
Al askans. He asserted that the solution is a reliable,
dependabl e, regional transm ssion system with the dispatch of
energy on an econonmic basis to ensure that the | east cost energy
is flowng to Al aska consuners.

MR. KLINE said the utilities seem to have begun the fornmative
steps toward establishing or making progress toward sone sort of
USO approach. He noted that the Al aska Railbelt Cooperative
Transmission & Electric Conmpany (ARTEC), a relatively new
organi zation, recently nmade a presentation to the Legislature

SENATE NRG COW TTEE - 5- February 19, 2015



regarding a USO approach in the Railbelt. He remarked that ARTEC
presented guiding principles that are sound, reflect the
principles that are consistent with XE s experience el sewhere in
the country, and reflect a necessary foundation to noving
Al aska's energy discussion forward.

1:33: 05 PM

He said the USO or 1SO approach is a necessary step to ensure
econom c benefits are realized. He set forth that another
necessary step is a reliable and dependable electric
transm ssion system He noted that study efforts have identified
projects that can help address sonme of the Railbelt's
transm ssion needs. One plan that was conducted by the Al aska
Energy Authority (AEA) identified approximtely $903 mllion of
transm ssion upgrades with an aggregate benefit-cost ratio of
3.4 times benefits to costs. He said the study denonstrates that
targeted strategic upgrades to Alaska's transm ssion system can
deliver significant benefit to custoners.

He addressed support needed from policynmakers, |egislators,
regulators, and other state |eaders. He stated that one
inportant fact is to ensure that the Regulatory Conm ssion of
Alaska (RCA) is enpowered with clear authority to enact the
goal s that the Legislature establishes.

He noted that historically, sone funding for a lot of mjor
energy infrastructure projects has cone from state resources. He
said considering the state's current budget constraints, new
financing nodels are necessary from non-traditional approaches.
He stated that Alaska will and can inplenment sonething that is
unique to its situation and needs. He asserted that there are
| essons to be Ilearned from elsewhere. He summarized that
sol utions can be unique, but finding the right solution based on
ot her inplenentations nmust be found.

1:35:45 PM

MS5. BREDENBECK announced that her presentation will be on XE s
case study of the CapX2020 Project that was organized 1in
M nnesota, Wsconsin, North Dakota, and South Dakota. She
detail ed that CapX2020 predated over 10 years ago where all the
entities that owned transmssion in the specified area were
trying to get organized. She specified that the transm ssion
entities knew projects needed to be built by com ng together and
organi zing, but there was worry about giving up control while
mai nt ai ni ng their par anount i nt erest in serving their
obligations. She stated that XE sees a simlar staging in Al aska
as what was experienced in the M dwest.

SENATE NRG COWM TTEE - 6- February 19, 2015



M5. BREDENBECK explained that CapX2020 started out as a
col | aborative approach with four wutilities who tried to figure
out how to build projects together wthout |ooking for soneone
else to provide a solution. She said CapX2020 wultimately
expanded to 11 and included: electric cooperatives; nunicipal
generation and transm ssion  owners; and investor owned
utilities. She stated that XE is trying to bring the |essons
| earned from CapX2020 forward to Al aska and pointed out that XE
played a l|ead role in getting CapX2020's four projects
i mpl ement ed.

1:38:34 PM

She expl ai ned that CapX2020's 11 entities invested $2 billion in
700 miles of 345 kilovolt (KV) transmission and 70 mles of 230
KV transmssion. She said there was key alignnent wth
regul ators and policymakers to nmake CapX2020's projects happen.
She stated that CapX2020's projects were very critical as the
foundation for future transm ssion. She said there was a no-
regrets approach adopted in looking at future scenarios to
ensure that the right anount was being built.

CO CHAIR BI SHOP asked to verify that the CapX2020 investnent and
bui |l d-out was over a ten year period.

MR. KLINE answered that the construction investnents were nade
over a five year period and the projects were devel oped over a
period of about a decade.

COCHAIR BISHOP asked who was involved wth CapXx2020's
perm tting.

MR. KLINE replied that the utilities were all involved, but XE
|l ed many of the permtting efforts.

CO CHAI R BI SHOP asked how XE's relationship was with the federal
permt agenci es.

MR. KLINE answered that he believed that XE s relationship with
the federal permtting entities was quite strong. He reveal ed
that one project required a 1.5 mle wde crossing of the
Mssissippi Rver in the mddle of an avian flyway, which
required a great deal of coordination with several permtting
authorities in order to acconplish that.

M5. BREDENBECK noted that there was a managenent committee
structure where all 11 entities participated to establish core

SENATE NRG COWM TTEE -7- February 19, 2015



principles and project build-outs. Entities selected to be part
of one or nore projects with each project having its own set of
agreenents. She noted that there had been ownership of discreet
lines in the past, but CapX2020 projects were built simlar to a

pi peline nodel where line investnent correlated wth a
percentage of ownership. She specified that there were four
types of agreenent s: owner shi p, construction managenent,

capacity exchange, operation and mai nt enance.

1:42: 43 PM

She reiterated that CapX2020's key success factor occurred with
the 11 entities comng together which snoothed the way wth
regul ators and policymkers to nove on with the construction
process. She remarked that the entity collaboration continues to
pay dividends in the region. She noted that as the projects near
conpletion, a study reveal ed that CapX2020's econom c i npact was

$4 billion. She revealed that one of the big drivers from the
| egi sl ative process which helped nove CapX2020 along was the
passing of the 2005 Omibus Energy bill, which allowed:

authorized return for construction work and progress, witer
incentive for the investor-owned wutilities, and a forward
| ooking rate recovery.

M5. MOGENSEN stated that CapX2020's coll aborate effort addresses
Co-Chair Bishop's comment about different sized entities having
to come together. She revealed that all of CapX2020's entities
ended up with a seat at the table with an ability to invest in
pi eces of the conbined infrastructure.

She detailed that the bulk of CapX2020 will be in service this
year and adm nistered under the 1SO as part of the regional
tariff, running on a system oversight control by MSO She
pointed out that M SO is an exanple of how transm ssion can get
done in a way that involves all the utilities in the region and
neets the goals that are set by the policynakers.

CO CHAI R BI SHOP asked if excess capacity was built into CapX2020
for expansi on.

M5. MOGENSEN answered yes. She explained that XE worked with the
regulators to authorize additional spending for additional
capacity.

1:46: 04 PM

M5. MOGENSEN stated that XE has the ability to offer a long term
partnership wth the Alaska wutilities to transform the
Rail belt's transm ssion system and overall infrastructure. She

SENATE NRG COWM TTEE - 8- February 19, 2015



asserted that XE has a lot of experience in developing 1SO
organi zations and can help speed Alaska' s inplenmentation. She
disclosed that XE is willing and able to invest with the Al aska
utilities to construct the study-identified facilities to help
alleviate constraints. She set forth that XE, on an ongoing
basis, is wlling to own transmssion with the Al aska utilities
along the lines of the CapX2020 nodel and also facilitate
i nprovenents in system operations.

She said the roadmap to inplenmentation starts wth the
Legislature, Alaska's energy policynmakers that sets policy
direction for the state. She stated that the roadmap then noves
to a regulatory comm ssion, the RCA, who is the state's policy
i npl enenter. She remarked that should the Legislature choose,
RCA would create the USO|1SO for operational oversight and
control. She sunmarized that the roadmap also includes the
transm ssion owners who are investing in the transm ssion assets
and running the transmssion system in addition to the
generation owners who are providing the energy supply options to
t he buyers.

1:48: 46 PM
She expl ained the Legislature's role as follows:

From a | egislature perspective, you set the policy to
define the nodel that you want to have for Alaska; in
this case, the Railbelt electric system There is a
report that will be comng out fromthe RCA which is
val idating whether the savings that were calcul ated,
and the original Railbelt report that canme out in
2013, whether those are solid. You would then clarify
the RCA's authority to inplenent the nodel that you
choose and set the utility participation; it would be
inportant for all of the utilities to participate to
make that common tariff and conmon system approach
wor k.

She explained the RCA's role as follows:

From the RCA perspective, it would be defining the
specific attributes and inplenenting that USQ,
validating and adopting the Railbelt Plan. You would
set resource planning requirenents if you chose to go
that route and set reliability standards; these two
are often tasks, in our experience, that conm ssions
sets.

SENATE NRG COWM TTEE - 9- February 19, 2015



M5. MOGENSEN expl ained the USO s role as foll ows:

The USO would then perform the econom c generation
di spat ch basical |y on a hour - by- hour basi s,
determning which is the set of generators that are
going to, together, generate the |east expensive power
to neet the demand at any given tinme in consideration
of the constraints on the grid for noving power
around; that's economc generation dispatch. The
unified transmssion tariff would be a single cost for
novi ng generation, noving power anywhere on that grid.
The USO woul d al so adm ni ster the revenue requirenents
associated with that tariff, so conpensating all of
the owners for their assets utilization, admnister a
generator interconnection process, and ultimately an
ongoi ng regional transm ssion planning process.

1:50: 58 PM
She specified the transm ssion owners' role as follows:

The transm ssion owners would construct, operate, and

maintain the grid in accordance wth whatever
requi renents were set from a reliability perspective
In the nodel that we have worked wth, all the

utilities have an ownership in the assets and have a
role in the future transm ssion ownership

She expl ai ned the generator owners' role as foll ows:

The gener at or owner s negoti ate power pur chase
agreenents with the buyers and they becone a network
resource, mneaning agree to be dispatched by that USQ
they would utilize the grid, pay that single
transm ssion tariff, and respond to the real-tine
di spat ch i nstructions. From an Xcel Ener gy
perspective, we would be able to provide sone of that
experience to speed your inplenmentation and also |ead
the col |l aborative investnent approach to inplenent the
Rai |l belt Plan with the Al askan utilities.

SENATOR EGAN asked if the RCA or utilities would be responsible
for the transm ssion build-out requirenents. He inquired if the
RCA woul d either be responsible or set the paraneters.

M5. MOGENSEN asked if Senator Egan was saying the standards for

how the ||ines are constructed or f or which lines are
construct ed.

SENATE NRG COW TTEE -10- February 19, 2015



SENATOR EGAN inquired if the RCA or utilities would be
responsible for all of the applicable transm ssion requirenents.

M5. MOGENSEN answered that wusually the RCA would address the
transm ssion |ine specifics: what |ine is used, how the Iline
should be built, and then establish that there is a need and
direct the wutilities to build them She explained that the
utilities would come up with, in general, a standard for how the
line should be done to neet whatever capacity that the lines are
supposed to neet. She noted that a soon to be released study
will identify transmssion |line specifics that shows potential
savi ngs.

SENATOR EGAN noted that the RCA had final approval in the past
and asked if the same would apply to the transm ssion |ines.

M5. MOGENSEN answer ed yes.

CO CHAIR BISHOP asked for a recap on his request for CapX2020
information that would apply to Al aska. He asked for exanples
that address power rates before and after the CapX2020
i npl enentation. He conceded that the variables between the
M dwest and Al aska will differ, but noted that his intent is to
see if Alaska is in the "ball park"” for possible savings.

M5. MOGENSEN replied that XE will supply the information. She
noted that savings after CapX2020 are an ongoing value
cal cul ati on.

1:54:59 PM

CO- CHAIR M CCI CHE summari zed that he will study the presentation
and contact XE. He asserted that he has to see a denonstration
for reduction in what ends up going to a ratepayer and not a
convenience for utilities. He pointed out that the Railbelt has
far too many utilities operating in an area that serves the size
of a medium sized, Lower 48 city. He remarked that one day he
would like to see one utility operate the system He said XE s
proposal mght be a first step. He noted that XE referenced
policymakers first in the process and asserted that wutilities
need to be working together first to see if they can cone up
with a collaborative path forward where the Legislature helps
with policy if needed. He opined that the Legislature has a
tendency to nove in a direction that is counterproductive to
what is best for the ratepayers. He suggested that XE work with
the utilities and bring the Legislature a plan. He pointed out
that Alaska is different in alnost every way, but in some ways

SENATE NRG COW TTEE -11- February 19, 2015



it's not. He summarized that he is looking forward to see what
XE can provide and asserted that their approach is the right way
to go if it brings the right players in the room keeps the
state out of court, and keeps everybody worki ng.

1:57: 15 PM

CO-CHAIR M CCl CHE announced that the conmittee will stand at
ease.

"NATURAL GAS DI STRI BUTI ON BUI LD- QUT" PRESENTATI ON BY ENSTAR

2:00: 05 PM

COCHAIR MCCICHE called the conmttee neeting back to order. He
announced that the next order of business is a presentation by
ENSTAR. He explained that the conmttee's interest is to
under stand how natural gas delivery efforts start wth ENSTAR

2:00: 54 PM
JARED GREEN, President, ENSTAR Natural Gas Conpany, Anchorage
Al aska.

2: 00: 58 PM
JOHN SIMS, Vice President, Corporate Resources and Business
Devel opnment, ENSTAR Natural Gas Conpany, Anchorage, Al aska,

MR. CGREEN revealed that ENSTAR is an indirect, wholly owned
subsidiary of AltaGas LTD. He said AltaGas is a diversified
energy infrastructure conpany with assets focused on natural gas
processi ng, power generation, and natural gas distribution. The
conpany has five different distribution utilities across Canada
and the United States. One of the utilities, Heritage Gas, is
located in Nova Scotia on Canada's east coast. He said his
presentation will address the experiences from the Nova Scotia
build-out. He conceded that there wll be mnmany differences
between Heritage Gas and what Alaska is facing with its Interior
energy project, but added that there wll be a nunber of
simlarities as well. He said the hope is that the presentation
can be of assistance and help out the Interior energy project as
it proceeds forward.

2:02:37 PM

MR. CGREEN stated that he wll review the basic economc
principles for a rate regulated utility, principles that frane
the discussion for the utility economcs. He detailed that the
utility economcs are fundanental for the encouragenent of

SENATE NRG COW TTEE -12- February 19, 2015



investment into wutility assets and in the cost of service
determ nation for the utility's toll

He said generally, a public utility is a natural nonopoly that
is subject to rate regulation. He explained that rate regul ation
prevents a nonopolistic control over the relationship between
the utility and their customers. The relationship between the
utility and custoners has a regulatory body which limts the
revenue a utility can charge to what is deened to be a just-and-
reasonable rate. He specified that the regulatory body has a
goal to provide incentives for investnent as well as trying to
not undul y provi de preferential, arbitrary, or unj ust
discrimnation. He stated that the goal is for tariffs that are
j ust - and-reasonabl e. He pointed out that "reasonable" is defined
as a rate conmensurate with the service being received.

2:04:21 PM

COCHAIR MCCICHE asked if there is a typical rate of return
range and how the rate is determned. He inquired if rates of
return are different in Nova Scotia or southern California
versus sout hcentral or Interior Al aska.

MR. GREEN answered yes. He said there is a large range that ends
up being fairly involved with the cost of capital and risk. He
detailed that the risk a specific wutility faces in their
operating environnent really drives what is considered to be a
fair return on investnent. He pointed out that Heritage Gas is
still inits "green field" stage where there is a fair anount of
risk. He specified that Heritage Gas' return on equity (ROE)
during its initial 8 years of operation was 13 percent, a return
deened to be comrensurate to the risk of a new utility build-
out. He added that 3 years ago, Heritage Gas' ROE dropped by 200
basis points by attracting nore custoners and reducing its
overall business risk as it becomes a nore viable entity. He
stated that ROE exanples for ENSTAR and its utility, Cook Inlet
Natural Gas Storage (CINGSA), are commensurate to operating in a
northern environment with a larger weather risk and being
farther from supply chai ns.

2:07:12 PM
CO- CHAIR M CCI CHE asked if Heritage Gas has a simlar regulating
agency.

MR. GREEN replied yes. He explained that the Nova Scotia Utility
and Review Board is a very simlar regulating body to the RCA

SENATE NRG COW TTEE -13- February 19, 2015



He detailed that utilities can be privately or publically owned.
Publically owned utilities include cooperative, nunicipal, or
governnment owned utilities. He noted that cooperative utilities
are owned by its customers. Private wutilities are also
considered to be investor owned utilities and that is where
ENSTAR s rol e is.

2:08: 59 PM

He explained that the regulatory process for an investor-owed
utility to determne just-and-reasonable rates is a very
i nvol ved and transparent process where the conm ssion, in a very
public forum gets to look at alnbst all of a wutility's
financial and operating information. He detailed that the
regul atory process is a two phase process. The first phase
determines the allowable return for an investor-owned utility
froma holistic prospective. He revealed that the first phase is
very backwards from a traditional private business approach
where returns are determned from revenue mnus expenses. For
rate-regul ated utilities, total return is a bottom up approach
where an opportunity to earn a fair return on investnment is
afforded. He noted that how an investnent is capitalized, the
split between debt and equity, is also taken into consideration.
He revealed that ENSTAR s capitalization is 51 percent equity
and 49 percent debt, a split that gets |ooked at very heavily
through the regulatory process. He detailed that t he
capitalization split is conpared to entities with simlar risk
profiles that prevents entities fromtaking on too nuch | everage
and havi ng over earning capabilities on the equity conponent.

He said the second phase | ooks at the custoner's perspective. He
explained that costs are allocated to the different types of
custoners and the result is a toll to each of the custoner
types. He specified that high volunme industrial custoners
require large transm ssion assets where residential custoners
utilize service lines and mins. He sunmarized that fair
all ocation is based on who is driving the | argest cost.

2:14: 44 PM
COCHAIR MCCICHE noted that soneone fanobus to the capitol
buil ding once said, "It’s not fish conpanies that went into the

fish business, it’s can conpanies; they just stick a little bit
of oil and sonme fish to sell you the cans.” He stated that he
was asking a simlar question pertaining to natural gas. He said
natural gas has a nice return, but noted that the industry does
have risks. He explained that understanding the many risks of
natural gas mght be a way for folks to understand why the
potential conpanies are involved with the state in noving in a

SENATE NRG COW TTEE -14- February 19, 2015



direction that includes the Interior and relative conpact
utilities like Seward. He asserted that ENSTAR s current return
does not really capture a |lot of the operational risk.

MR. GREEN explained that a utility's shareholders take into
account the risks involved versus the return on equity. He
pointed out that risks include attracting additional custoners,
having an outage in the mddle of the winter, and an increase in
gas prices where fuel oil beconmes a better value. He set forth
that a utility does have an economc obligation to serve once
the utility franchise is accepted in exchange for a fair return.

2:19: 04 PM

He addressed Heritage Gas and explained that AltaGas was an
i nvestor since 2002 and sole owner since 2009. He stated that
Heritage Gas was a greenfield-distribution utility that occurred
when the Maritinme Northeast Pipeline was constructed to bring
offshore gas from Sable Island to the Boston narket. He
specified that a lateral line was built to feed Halifax's Nova
Scotia Power's Tufts Cove 400 negawatt power plant. He asserted
that Heritage Gas would not have started w thout the pipeline
infrastructure that supplied secure and reliable gas.

2:21:45 PM
He revealed that Heritage Gas has invested over $220 million
during the past ten years with an annual 6.5 billion cubic feet

of natural gas flowing to 5, 000 custoners. He said Heritage Gas
has had decent success on the penetration for industrial and
comercial customers, but residential custoner penetration has
been sl ower than what was originally expected.

CO- CHAIR M CCl CHE asked what the price of heating oil is, were
there other options outside of heating oil, and is there an
entity that is willing to help with the cost of conversion. He
noted that Al aska has the Alaska Energy Authority (AEA) that
offers I ow cost financing for conversion.

MR. GREEN replied that there are sonme funds from an energy
conservation program that are ainmed at |owering greenhouse gas
usage for homeowner and commercial entities. He conceded that
t here has not been any governnent contribution for Heritage Gas'
bui Il d-out and funding has purely been from investnent and tolls
paid by custoners. He pointed out that AltaGas' Alberta utility
build-out in the 1960s and 1970s received significant government
contribution for a rural network buil d-out.

SENATE NRG COW TTEE - 15- February 19, 2015



MR. GREEN specified that Nova Scotia's fuel source market

consists of: No. 2 fuel oil, electricity, propane, wood, and
natural gas. He noted that in 2013, Heritage Gas' 5,000
custonmers had $73 mllion worth of savings versus their costs

prior to conversion. He conceded that the natural gas conversion
cost for residential custonmers remains as a difficult hurdle. He
noted that Heritage Gas' Ilarge comrercial customers such as
hospitals and schools have realized significant savings.

2:26:13 PM

COCHAIR MCCICHE pointed out Fai r banks' challenge wth
em ssions and noted that Heritage Gas' conversion saved 220,000
tons of greenhouse gas em ssions.

SENATOR EGAN asked if Nova Scotia Power's electricity generation
is through natural gas or hydropower.

MR. GREEN answered that the nmamin power generation through Nova
Scotia Power is a mx of natural gas, coal, and No. 2 fuel oil

COCHAIR MCCICHE asked if the Maritinme Northeast production
ever came on as expect ed.

MR. GREEN answered that Sable Island was producing as expected
early on, but production has significantly declined in recent
years. He noted that there is sone new gas comng into the
pi peline from another offshore platform He conceded that gas
may end up having to go south to north instead of its
traditional north to south. He explained that Heritage Gas does
have supply security by being connected to the North Anmerican
grid. He conceded that getting gas past the Boston market is
extrenely expensive.

COCHAIR MCCICHE asserted that demand creates a market for
exploration and production. He noted that there are sone folks
in the Cook Inlet that worry about future supply even though the
supply outlook inproved dramatically in the last couple of
years. He pointed out that Fairbanks' dense popul ati on and heavy
industrial areas are a very attractive market. He asserted that
natural gas distribution expansion increases the notivation for
expl oration and producti on.

2:29: 33 PM

MR. GREEN replied that he agreed. He explained that Heritage
Gas’ residential rate is $19.24 per 1,000 cubic feet (MCF) of
natural gas. He added that a fixed nonthly toll charge nakes the
total residential rate just under $21.00 MCF. He noted that the

SENATE NRG COW TTEE -16- February 19, 2015



toll covers the system build-out costs. He explained that the
Heritage Gas' toll is higher than what ENSTAR woul d have due to
pi peline build-out that occurred in the 1960s and 1970s versus
t he 2000s.

COCHAIR MCCICHE stated that Heritage Gas' distribution charges
and gas costs are relatively high. He asked to verify that the
residential rate is $21.87 MF and that the comercial or
i ndustrial rates are higher.

MR. GREEN answered yes. He explained that the fixed charge is
heavily negotiated and takes into account costs, risks, and
demand.

2:32: 38 PM
CO-CHAIR M CClI CHE opined that Heritage Gas' high rate mght be
part of the problemfor conversion.

MR. GREEN agreed that conversion is inpacted by the rates, but
noted that natural gas has offered significant discounts versus
fuel oil and propane. He conceded that the recent drop in oil
prices will make conversion nore chall engi ng.

SENATOR EGAN asked what the price per gallon for Diesel #2 is.

MR. SIMS answered that he did not know what the price is in
Hal i f ax.

CO- CHAIR M CCI CHE pointed out that a fair conparison would be to
covert to one thousand British Thermal Units (MBTU). He surm sed
that Diesel #2 is right around $22 or $23 per MBTU

MR. SIMS replied that he agreed.

2:34: 32 PM

MR. GREEN noted that Heritage Gas has |ooked to expand to
cormmunities that are not directly accessible by the nornm

transm ssion pipe, conmunities that are too far away to nake a
pi peline an economcal investnment to attach to. Heritage Gas
built out a Conpressed Natural Gas (CNG portion of the
busi ness. He stated that CNG has been a nice little investnent
for Heritage Gas to access sone of the small comunities that do
have a core anchor-load. He specified that an anchor-industria

custonmer is required to warrant the CNG equi pnent investnent. He
said the CNG program has been a successful side to the business
and its ability to grow out a bit nore of the custoner base and
bring sone nore natural gas to nore people. He noted that CNG

SENATE NRG COW TTEE -17- February 19, 2015



does conme with additional cost because of the added facilities
and transportation. He stated that applying CNG nethodol ogy has
been addressed for Al aska. He remarked that ENSTAR may very wel |
| ook at expanding out to sone areas in Al aska where CNG would
make sense. He specified that CNG has a limted range because
there is not that much energy content per trailer, but it still
could be a value proposition to the custoner base. He said using
CNG conmes down to transport and distribution build-out costs.

2:37:28 PM
CO CHAI R BI SHOP asked what the kilonmeter meke-or-break point is
for CNG delivery.

MR. GREEN answered 180 kiloneters. He noted that the CNG range
has recently grown due to advances in tube technol ogy, steel
versus conposite. He explained that conposite tubes are lighter
and allow nore CNG to be shi pped on the roads.

SENATOR EGAN asked what M. Geen considered to be a snall
community. He inquired if Juneau would be considered a snall
community at 35, 000.

MR. GREEN opined that he would not consider Juneau to be a snal
community. He stated that Seward would be an exanple of a smal
community, but one that is large enough to warrant facilities
and pi pel i nes.

SENATOR EGAN asked if CNG trailers can be transported by barge.
He surmsed that barge service would allow for CNG to be
delivered at greater distances.

MR. GREEN answered yes. He explained that there has been sone
old gas supply discussions where barged CNG on a larger scale
was | ooked at as a potential supply alternative.

SENATOR EGAN opined that savings could be realized where tugs
coul d be propelled by LNG or CNG

2:41: 06 PM

CO-CHAIR M CCICHE noted that the Legislature has a tendency to
pick the wong direction and throw a lot of nobney at the sane
decision for years and get further off base every tine. He
stated that the conmittee's hope is for people to pullback and
figure out what works best economcally for various communities:
propane, OCNG LNG or a pipeline. He asserted that the
Legislature gets in the way of energy decisions. He remarked
that the Fairbanks market is probably at the point where sonmeone

SENATE NRG COW TTEE - 18- February 19, 2015



is probably willing to take on the nmarket if the Legislature
woul d get out of the way and allow for an entity to evaluate the
cost and nove forward. He said in other comunities the
Legi slature may have to be involved in sone subsidies that bring
down the cost of energy. He noted that the state has a goal of
25 percent renewable by 2025 and the state was currently in the
| ow 20 percent range. He remarked that discussions that address
what works best for comunities needs to happen statew de. He
explained that his intent in the neeting is to |look at a build-
out in hypothetical comunities that are simlar to Fairbanks
and the other Ilike Seward. He said the Fairbanks exanple
addresses the Interior and Seward mght ook a lot |ike Juneau,
Sitka, or other coastal comunities that mght have coastal
deliveries of propane, CNG or LNG one day.

SENATOR EGAN asked what the average price per kilowatt is

MR. SIMS replied that the price range is $0.10, but continues to
go up.

SENATOR EGAN asked if the average price is the conmercial rate.

MR SIM5S answered that the price is the residential rate. He
not ed that Chugach may be | ess.

2:43: 37 PM

MR SIMS said Honer was a good exanple of state and | ocal

governments working together wth the utilities to serve a
community. He explained that in 2009, Anchor Point Energy found
a comrercial anmount of gas in the North Fork Unit. ENSTAR
extended its transm ssion system 21 mles from N nilchik dow to
Anchor Point to access the natural gas and nake the pipeline to
Honmer a possibility. Homer and Kachemak City contacted ENSTAR
and asked for an estimte to get gas down to the Honer area

which was $10 million. Homer was granted $8.15 nillion by the
state to help go towards a trunk-line. He detailed that ENSTAR
estimated that the conplete distribution main build out was 70
mles and $15 million for Honmer, 9 mles and $1.5 million for
Kachemak. Honer voters approved the Honer Special Assessnent
District (HSAD) where individual property owners are assessed a
certain percentage of the project cost. The assessnent was
estimated to be $3,200 per lot, allowing Honer to obtain a |oan
from the Kenai Peninsula Borough to pay ENSTAR for the
di stribution systeminstallation.

2:46:49 PM

SENATE NRG COW TTEE -19- February 19, 2015



SENATOR EGAN asked if HSAD was a Local Inprovenent District
(LID).

MR SIM5 answered yes. He detailed that ENSTAR installed 70
mles of distribution main in two years, total project cost was
$12.1 mllion. He explained that the Cty of Kachemak decided to
pay thenselves for the installation of the distribution system
9 nmles, total cost $1.2 mllion. He added that to drive the
conversion rate, Kachenak's residents were paid $500 for service
line and neter setup. He revealed that Kachemak's conversion
rate was nearly 100 percent. He explained that Honer's
conversion rate was very good for a two year tine frame, a rate
simlar to a year-five projection. Approximately 1,300 custoners
converted out of 2,500. He noted that a nunber of custonmers have
paid for their service line and neters, but have not converted
yet, possibly due to the conversion cost or a shortage of
plunbers in the area. He said ENSTAR is anticipating a 60 to 70
percent conversion rate in Honer.

CO CHAI R Bl SHOP asked what the burner-tip price in Honmer is.

MR SIMS replied that the rates for Honer are postage-stanp
rates, just |ike anywhere el se on ENSTAR s system He noted that
Homer pays for a $1.00 per MCF surcharge that goes to pay off
the project's remaining cost. He said Homer is paying about $11
per MCF.

COCHAIR MCCICHE asked if the $11 MCF includes the $1.00
sur char ge.

MR. SI M5 answered yes.

2:49: 57 PM
CO-CHAIR M CCI CHE noted that Honmer's expansion essentially took
pl ace in one year.

MR. SIMS specified that Homer’s expansion was two years: the
city core in the first year, the outer areas and the spit in
year two. He said Kachenmak City was done in year one.

CO-CHAIR M CCICHE specified that the trunk-line was a one year
project that connected Honmer with the rest of the system He
asked what the dianeter is for the trunk-1ine.

MR SIMS answered that the trunk-line's dianeter started at

eight inches and went down to six inches in Homer down to
Kachenmak.

SENATE NRG COW TTEE - 20- February 19, 2015



COCHAIR MCCICHE confirmed that people have reduced their
heating bills and the conversion will continue. He asserted that
an accel erated conversion to nake the project work will depend
on natural gas' price being at a point where even senior
citizens see the benefit of conversion. He remarked that only
converting 30 year olds wll nake the project's math upside
down. He said his intent was to get people to think about all of
the little pieces that go into conversion and take into account
the costs that make the project mathematically work. He noted
that M. Geen talked about an inportant fact that industrial
users generally pay the bulk of initial service and everyone
after that essentially gets a better deal.

2:52: 38 PM

MR. GREEN agreed that having a |arge anchor custoner is the
under pi nni ng of expansion. He specified that custonmers com ng on
are not getting a discount or deal, but they are getting the
benefit of the scale that a large custoner brings in cost
shari ng.

CO- CHAIR BISHOP remarked that a project mght not even happen
wi t hout the anchor tenant.

MR. CGREEN answered correct.

MR. SIM5 added that high schools and shopping malls are | ooked
at in smaller communities that don't have industrial |oad. He
explained that a large custoner on the end of an extended main
brings service to the other folKks.

CO-CHAIR M CClI CHE pointed out that bringing the costs down for
muni ci pal structures benefits everyone. He noted that during the
two years when the project's funds were being secured, the Kenai
Peni nsul a Borough woul d have saved $2 mllion just on rmunicipa
bui | di ng fuel costs.

2:54: 23 PM

COCHAIR M CC CHE remarked that he may have ENSTAR cone back to
the conmttee. He stated that his intent is to get all of the
players that mght take a role in getting a reliable source of
natural gas to the Interior. He said he thinks there is an
interim way of getting natural gas to the Interior that 1is
permanent and reliable. He stated that he has been pushing
pipeline transmssion to Fairbanks and the Interior. He
reiterated that he may have ENSTAR back to talk about how the
pi eces mght need to cone together in the future if pipeline

SENATE NRG COW TTEE -21- February 19, 2015



transm ssion is going to happen in the Interior. He added that
the future discussion wll bring some snaller coast al
comunities and renote places to the table to address conversion
to CNG or LNG He asserted that $3.00 No. 2 fuel oil is not
going to stay forever when previous prices ranged from $5.00 to
$8.00. He summarized that a reliable and long term solution is
needed.

2:56: 15 PM

There being no further business to conme before the commttee
Co-Chair Mcciche adjourned the Senate Special Committee on
Energy hearing at 2:56 p. m

SENATE NRG COW TTEE -22- February 19, 2015



